

## RFP # 19-20-08

## **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)**

Media, Public Relations and Marketing Agency

Mayor Daniel R. Barrone

## **Council Members**

Nathaniel Evans Darien D. Fernandez George "Fritz" Hahn Pascualito Maestas

### **RFP Procurement Officer Contact Information**

Name	Sharon Voigt
Phone Number	505-751-2025
E-mail	svoigt@taosgov.com

Any inquiries or requests regarding clarification of this RFP document shall be submitted to the Procurement Officer in writing. Proposers may contact ONLY the Procurement Officer regarding the terminology stated in the procurement documents.

### **RFP Submittal Location**

Physical Address	US Postal Mail Address
(*for walk-in delivery or carrier service (UPS, FedEx,	(allow extra days for delivery)
etc.)	
The Town of Taos Purchasing Division Time C	Clock is the official submission time on all bids
and proposals.	
Town of Taos	Town of Taos
Attention: Purchasing Division, Room 202	Attention: Purchasing Division, Room 202
400 Camino de la Placita	400 Camino de la Placita
Taos, NM 87571	Taos, NM 87571

The outer most envelope of your proposal shall be clearly labeled with the following: Proposers' business name, RFP number and RFP title, and opening date & time. Please note: if you put your sealed bid inside of a FedEx, UPS, etc. envelope, all of this information must be clearly written on that outer envelope as well.

PLEASE NOTE: Proposals will also be accepted via Vendor Registry, the town electronic bidding system by the required date and time as noted on the RFP document.

Offerors must register to the online portal using the following link: <a href="https://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/vendor/register/signup">https://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/vendor/register/signup</a>

Offerors understand and agree that technical support may not be readily available the day of and or the hours/minutes prior to a RFP closing time (Due Date/Time). Offerors also understand and agree that internet access, browsers, and operating systems are not supported by the Town and/or its agents. Offerors are strongly encouraged to review, create, and submit all electronic proposal several days in advance of the due date and time.

#### PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY EMAIL OR FAX.

#### **RFP Term**

One (1) year contract, with option for three (3) additional one-year extensions, not to exceed a total of four (4) years.

TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE #
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	4
TERMS AND CONDITIONS	7
PROTESTS	10
RFP SCHEDULE	10
SCOPE OF WORK	12
EVALUATION CRITERIA	14
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS	15
PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST	16
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL	17
OFFEROR'S INFORMATION FORM	18
COST PROPOSAL	19
CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM	20-21
CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION FORM	22
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY FORM	23

#### **GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS**

- 1. **Read All Documents**: Proposers should familiarize themselves with all the documents contained herein; it is mandatory that all submitted offers be in compliance with all the provisions contained in Request for Proposal. Proposers should promptly notify the Procurement Officer of any ambiguity, inconsistency, error, or missing attachments which they may discover upon examination of the RFP.
- 2. This RFP is being made available by electronic means. In the event of conflict between a version of the RFP in the Proposer's possession and the version maintained by Town, the Proposer acknowledges that the version maintained by Town shall govern.
- 3. By responding to this RFP, Proposers acknowledge and agree to the terms and conditions set forth in this RFP.
- 4. Responses, including proposal prices, will be considered firm for one hundred twenty (120) days after the due date.
- 5. Proposer shall submit one (1) original proposal, five (5) identical copies and one (1) identical electronic copy. Electronic copy is not email; please provide a Jump Drive loaded with your proposal. Fax or emailed copies are not accepted.
- 6. Any and all Proposals not received by the Proposal submission date and time shall be rejected. No late proposals will be accepted under any circumstances, not even if Delivery Company or Delivery Service is late. It is recommended to send your proposal early.
- 7. The Town may in its sole discretion extend the time for the submission of offers upon a finding that it is in the best interest of the Town to do so. Such extensions shall be by addendum, which may be issued before the submission due date.
- 8. No Addendum will be issued later than five (5) days prior to the date for receipt of Proposals, except an Addendum withdrawing the Request for Proposal, or one which includes postponement of the due date for receipt of Proposals.
- 9. All costs incurred by a Proposer in connection with responding to this RFP, the evaluation and selection process undertaken in connection with this procurement, and any negotiations with the Town, will be borne by the Proposer.
- 10. Any exceptions to the scope of work and/or specifications shall be listed separately in the offer and, unless otherwise stated, specifications attached are the minimum requirements. Minor deviations to the specifications as listed, may be considered.
- 11. Proposers may contact ONLY the Procurement Officer regarding the terminology stated in the procurement documents. Other Town employees do not have the authority to respond on behalf of Town. Proposers <a href="MAY NOT">MAY NOT</a> contact other town employees, departments, Council Members or Mayor. Any contact with town employee, departments, Council Members or Mayor may automatically result in a rejection of any proposal. Any other communication will be considered unofficial and non-binding. Communication directed to parties other than the Procurement Officer will have no legal bearing on this RFP or the resulting contract(s). Any response made by the Town will be provided in writing to all Proposers by addendum; no verbal responses shall be authoritative.

- 12 Any contact during the RFP evaluation process, or attempt to have contact with the Evaluation Committee, where it is unsolicited by the Evaluation Committee's members, is grounds for disqualification of your offer.
- 13. Proposers will be allowed to withdraw their proposal at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of proposals. The Proposer must submit a written withdrawal request to the Procurement Officer and signed by the Proposer to withdraw their offer. The approval or denial of withdrawal request received after the deadline for receipt of the proposals is governed by the applicable procurement regulations.
- 14. Definition of Terminology: This section contains definitions that are used throughout this procurement document, including appropriate abbreviations:
- "Agency" shall mean Town of Taos (Town).
- "Contract" shall mean an agreement for the procurement of items of tangible personal property or services.
- "Contractor" shall mean successful Offeror.
- "Determination" shall mean the written documentation of a decision of a procurement officer including findings of fact required to support a decision. A determination becomes part of the procurement file to which it pertains.
- "Desirable" the terms "may", "can", "should", or "prefers" identify a desirable or discretionary item or factor.
- "Evaluation Committee" shall mean a body of Town employees or other representatives assigned to perform the evaluation of Offeror proposals.
- "Finalist" is defined as an Offeror who meets all the mandatory specifications of the Request for Bid and whose score on evaluation factors is sufficiently high to qualify that Offeror for further consideration by the Evaluation Committee.
- "Mandatory" the terms "must", "shall", "will", "is required", or "are required", identify a mandatory item or factor. Failure to meet a mandatory item or factor will result in the rejection of the Offeror's proposal or bid.
- "Offeror" or "Proposer" is any person, corporation, or partnership who chooses to submit a proposal or a bid.
- "Purchase Order" shall mean the document, which directs a contractor to deliver items of tangible personal property or services pursuant to an existing contract.
- "Request for Proposal" or "RFP" means all documents, including those attached or incorporated by reference, used for soliciting proposals.
- "Responsible Offeror" shall mean an Offeror who submits a responsive bid and who has furnished, when required, information and data to prove that its financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the services or items of tangible personal property described in the bid.

"Responsive Offer" shall mean an offer, which conforms in all material respects to the requirements set forth in the request for proposal.

- 15. Submitted proposals shall not be publicly opened.
- 16. This request for proposal may be canceled or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part when it is in the best interest of the Town of Taos.
- 17. The Town reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to waive minor informalities in offers submitted, provided that such informalities have no effect on price, quality, quantity, fitness, delivery or any matter to be evaluated in making a selection and confer no material advantage on the Offeror whose nonconformity is waived.
- 18. Any sole response that is received may be rejected by the Town depending on available competition and timely needs of the Town. The Town reserves the right to award the contract to the responsible proposers submitting responsive proposals with resulting agreements most advantageous and in the best interest of the Town.
- 19. This procurement in no manner obligates the Town of Taos until a valid signed contract or valid Purchase Order is executed.
- 20. The Town reserves the right to add to or delete from the Scope of Work set forth in this RFP.
- 21. The Town reserves the right to eliminate any Proposer who submits incomplete or inadequate responses or is not responsive to the requirements of this RFP.
- 22. The Town reserves the right to discontinue negotiations with any selected Proposer.
- 23. The contents of the proposals shall not be disclosed during any negotiations that may occur. A public log will be kept of the names of all Offeror organizations that submitted proposals. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, § 13-1-116, the contents of proposals shall not be disclosed to competing potential Offerors during the negotiation process. The negotiation process is deemed to be in effect until the contract is awarded pursuant to this Request for Proposals. Awarded in this context means the final required Town signature on the contract(s) resulting from the procurement has been obtained.
- 24. After final contract is negotiated, approved and awarded, all proposal documents pertaining to this procurement will be open to the public, except for the material which is proprietary or confidential. The Purchasing Division will not disclose or make public any pages of an offer on which the Offeror has stamped or imprinted "proprietary" or "confidential", subject to the following requirements.

Proprietary or confidential data shall be readily separable from the offer in order to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the offer. Confidential data is normally restricted to confidential financial information concerning the Offeror's organization and data that qualifies as trade secret in accordance with the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, 57-3A-1 to 57-3A-7 NMSA 1978. The price of products offered or the cost of services proposed shall not be designated as proprietary or confidential information.

- 25. Where a brand-name or equal specification is used in a solicitation, the use of a brand name is for the purpose of describing the standard of quality, performance and characteristics desired, and is not intended to limit or restrict competition. If a vendor proposes an "equal" to scope of work/specifications, the Town reserves the right to refuse any or all proposals and is the sole interpreter of the scope of work/specifications and sole judge as to whether the "equal" proposed complies with the scope of work/specifications.
- 26. The Town reserves the right to multi award contracts as necessary for adequate delivery or service in accordance with 13-1-153 NMSA.
- 27. The Evaluation Committee may make such investigations as necessary to determine the ability of the potential Proposer to adhere to the requirements specified within this RFP. The Evaluation Committee will reject the proposal of any potential Proposer who is not a responsible Offeror, or who fails to submit a responsive offer, as defined in NMSA 1978 13-1-83 and 13-1-85.

#### TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. TERM: The Town reserves the right to procure the professional services as described in this RFP and enter into a contract as described in the RFP.
- 2. NON-APPROPRIATION: The Town's obligation to make payment under the terms of this RFP is contingent upon its appropriation of sufficient funds to make those payments. If the Town does not appropriate funds for the continuation of this procurement, this procurement will terminate upon written notice of that effect to the Contractor. The Town determination that sufficient funds have not been appropriated is firm, binding and not subject to review.
- 3. PROCUREMENT CODE: The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil and misdemeanor criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities, and kickbacks.
- 4. TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this contract as follows:
  - A. Termination by the Contractor
    - 1. The contractor may terminate this contract only if the Town of Taos fails to comply with any provisions of this contract and after receiving notice of the noncompliance, the Town fails to cure the noncompliance within ten (10) days, or
    - 2. By written mutual agreement between the Contractor and the Town.
  - B. Termination by the Town
    - 1. For Cause
    - a. The occurrence of either one of the following events will justify termination for cause:
      - i Contractor's persistent failure to perform the work in accordance with the contract documents (including but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment).
      - ii. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of this contract.

- b. If either one of the events identified above occur, the Town may, after giving Contractor (and the surety, if any) ten (10) days written notice, terminate the service of Contractor, exclude Contractor from site, and take possession of the work. Contractor shall be paid for project costs incurred up to the date of termination but shall not be paid for loss of profits resulting from such termination.
- c. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by the Town, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of the Town against contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due the Contractor by the Town will not release the Contractor from liability.

#### 2. For Convenience

- a. Upon ten (10) days written notice to contractor, the Town of Taos may without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Town, elect to terminate the contract.
- b. In such case, Contractor shall be paid (without duplication of any items):
  - i for completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the effective date of termination,
  - ii. for expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials or equipment as required by the contract document in connection with uncompleted work.
- c. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.
- 5. INDEMNIFICATION: The Proposer shall be responsible for damage to persons or property that occurs as a result of his fault or negligence, or that of any of his employees, agents or subcontractors. He shall save and hold harmless the Town of Taos against any and all loss, cost, damage, claims, expense or liability in connection with the performance of the contract. Any equipment or facilities damaged by the Proposer's operation shall be repaired and/or restored to their original condition at the Proposer's expense.
- 6. INSURANCE (If Applicable): The successful proposer shall purchase and maintain statutory limits of Worker's Compensation, Public Liability and Automobile Liability insurance approved by the Town at the time of contract award. The Town of Taos shall be included as a loss payee and/or additional insured. Public Liability and Automobile Liability insurance shall include at least the following coverage:

General Liability Insurance – per occurrence	\$1,000,000
General Aggregate - \$2,000,000	
Product/completed operations aggregate \$1,000,000	
Bodily injury, per occurrence	\$1,000,000
Medical and medically-related expenses	\$5,000
Vehicle bodily injury, each occurrence, excluding medical and medically	\$750,000
related expenses	
Property Damage, per occurrence	\$1,000,000

Contractor shall furnish Owner with certificates of insurance with the contract documents and prior to the commencement of work.

**NOTE:** Certificate holder shall be: Town of Taos

**Certificate of Insurance forwarded to:** Town of Taos

Legal Department

400 Camino de la Placita

Taos, NM 87571

- 7. AUDIT: The Town reserves the right to audit the contractor's records associated with this contract at any time during the contract period and for a period of up to three years following the expiration or termination of the agreement. Such audit may be conducted by Town personnel or a third party under contract with the Town. The Town shall give the contractor reasonable notice prior to the conduct of any audit and upon receiving the notice from the Town the contractor agrees to fully cooperate with the auditors. If contractor subcontracts any portion of its obligation to another party, contractor shall guarantee the Town's access to books and records of such party.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the Town. The Contractor shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, or any other benefits afforded to employees of the Town as a result of this procurement.
- 9. PROCUREMENT UNDER EXISTING CONTRACTS: In accordance with NMSA 13-1-129, proposers are hereby notified that other governmental entities within the State of New Mexico, or as otherwise allowed by their respective governing directives, may contract for services with the awarded proposer. Contractual engagements accomplished under this provision shall be solely between the awarded proposer and the contracting entity with no obligation by the Town of Taos.
- 10. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION: A business (contractor, subcontractor or supplier) that has either been debarred or suspended pursuant to the requirements of 13-1-177 through 13-1-180, and 13-4-11 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978 as amended, shall not be permitted to do business with the Town and shall not be considered for award of the contract during the period for which it is debarred or suspended with the Town.
- 11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: By submitting a proposal, the proposer certifies that no relationship exists between the proposer and the Town that interferes with fair competition or is a conflict of interest; and no relationship exists between such propose and another person or firm that constitutes a conflict of interest that is adverse to the Town.
- 12. NON-DISCLOSURE: The proposer shall not disclose any information relating to employees of Town, other than such information that may be authorized by the individual employee. Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town from any damages, claims, liabilities, and costs including reasonable attorney fees in the event any unauthorized release of such information occurs.
- 13. ASSIGNMENTS: The awarded Contractor shall not assign nor delegate specific duties as part of this RFP nor transfer any interest nor assign any claims for money due or to become due under this RFP without the written consent of the Town.

14. PAYMENT: Any invoice received and payment made shall be subject to Town's terms and conditions (NET 30) unless specifically waived by Town in a separate written document and not this RFP or any response.

### **PROTESTS**

- 1. Any Offeror who is aggrieved in connection with a solicitation or award of an Agreement may protest to the Purchasing Office in accordance with the requirements of the Town's Purchasing Policy, as amended, the State Procurement Code Regulations and the State Procurement Code. The protest should be made in writing within 24 hours after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto, but in no case later than 15 calendar days after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto (13-1-172 NMSA 1978). The protest must be in writing and delivered to the Chief Procurement Officer Purchasing Division, Taos, New Mexico.
- 2. In the event of a timely protest under this section, the Central Purchasing Office and the Contracting Agency shall not proceed further with the procurement unless the Central Purchasing Office makes a determination that the award of Agreement is necessary to protect substantial interests of the Contracting Agency (13-1-173 NMSA 1978).
- 3. The Central Purchasing Office or designee shall have the authority to take any action reasonably necessary to resolve a protest of an aggrieved Offeror concerning a procurement. This authority shall be exercised in accordance with adopted regulations, but shall not include the authority to award money damages or attorneys' fees (13-1-174 NMSA 1978).
- 4. The Central Purchasing Office or his designee shall promptly issue a determination relating to the protest. The determination shall:
  - A. State the reasons for the action taken; and
  - B. Inform the protestant of the right to judicial review of the determination pursuant to 13-1-183 NMSA 1978.
- 5. A copy of the determination issued under 13-1-175 NMSA 1978 shall immediately be mailed to the protestant and other Offerors involved in the procurement (13-1-176 NMSA 19.

## **RFP SCHEDULE**

Action	Date			
RFP- Issued	6/2/2020			
Pre-proposal Meeting	N/A			
Pre-proposal Location	N/A			
Deadline for Questions	6/8/2020 @ 5:00 pm (local time)			
RFP Due Date and Time	6/16/2020 @ 1:00 pm (local time)			
Proposals must be received by the due date and time. No late proposals will be accepted.				
Evaluation of Proposals	June 2020			
Contract Negotiations	June-July 2020			

The Procurement Officer will make every effort to adhere to the RFP Schedule. The schedule is subject to change by addendum. The evaluation committee <u>mav</u> request a presentation from the Proposer(s) of the top

rated proposals; however, contracts may be awarded without such presentations and based solely on written offers. Finalists will be contacted to schedule presentations, if required. If a presentation is requested, evaluation scores will be re-scored to reflect presentation scores.

### **SCOPE OF WORK**

#### **Public Relations and Marketing**

The Town of Taos Marketing and Tourism Department is seeking an experienced and well-qualified public relations firm and/or marketing agency to assist in managing and executing an innovative public relations and marketing campaign as a critical part of Taos' overall branding effort. The public relations and marketing campaign is expected to integrate an advertising and social media strategy that provides a strong online presence, greater engagement and reinforces the Visit Taos brand.

The objective of the public relations/marketing agency is to work with media partners to deliver and place compelling stories about Taos to the venturesome traveler to our target markets. The public relations and marketing strategy should ignite awareness of Taos as a premier travel destination and create conversion by motivating the traveler to choose Taos for their next travel experience. The responding agency should have relevant experience in working with destination marketing organizations or tourism related businesses, with strong research and planning capabilities and sound budget stewardship.

#### Agency will be required to provide the following services:

- Evaluate organizational marketing, public relations and social media plan
- Develop and implement an advertising program that will achieve the overall organizational objectives
- Identify and recommend the optimum use of advertising media to maximize the impact of a specified budget
- Work with internal and external teams to place advertising in appropriate mediums
- Track and report on the success and impact of all campaigns on a regular basis agreed upon by both parties
- Develop and implement surveys for market research
- Paid social media promotion
- E-newsletter design, development and distribution

#### **Digital and Social Media:**

- Monitor and manage Visit Taos social media channels and digital ad buys (SoMe to include Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, Pinterest)
- Plan and implement social media and digital campaigns that drive engagement and traffic to Taos.org
- Source and produce engaging content to ensure social media channels are up to date, relevant and interesting
- Drive and manage social media campaigns from content creation, to measurement of campaign success
- Help to increase conversion rates and ROI
- Understanding of the Taos tourism brand and ability to represent the brand professionally on all social channels and digital platforms
- Setup daily tasks and activity for all social media outlets
- Keep track of social media trends and competition
- Deliver monthly reports with statistics and results for all social and digital placement

#### **Public Relations:**

- Develop and execute an annual media relations plan that includes a suggested pitch calendar to expand awareness of Taos as a travel destination
- Develop Fact Sheet/Press Kit

- Develop and pitch in-depth story ideas with the Visit Taos branding message to key reporters each month
- Track editorial calendars and pitch appropriate leads
- Service day to day calls from journalists
- Coordinate interviews between writers/journalists and Town of Taos
- 1 to 2 press announcements per month write, send, place and pitch
- Provide daily media clips
- Monthly reporting and media values
- Weekly conference call
- Monthly update to the Lodgers Tax Advisory Board
- Weekly check-in calls with the Director of Marketing and Tourism
- Coordinate of Media and/or Influencer Visits
- Define the matrix you will utilize to measure the results of all media and public relations efforts

#### **EVALUATION CRITERIA**

Proposals must address each of the following criteria. Each proposal may be awarded points up to the numeric value listed. Points will be awarded in compliance with NMSA 13-1-21 for New Mexico In-State Resident Business and Resident Veteran Business. If proposal is a Joint Venture, Offeror shall state in submitted proposal the percentage of work that will be performed by Resident Business and/or Resident Veteran Business.

Please Note: An Offeror cannot be awarded both a resident preference and a resident veteran business preference. Offerors shall include in their proposal a copy of certificate issued by State of New Mexico Taxation & Revenue. **Note: FAILURE** to adequately address and meet the above requirements may be cause for the proposal to be deemed non-responsive by the procurement officer.

# \*\*\*The Offeror should contact Procurement Officer for clarification of evaluation criteria or terminology\*\*\*

	Possible Points	Points This RFP
Firm/Company Profile		
Submit detailed information concerning your firm/company such as location, years	10	
in business, awards, expertise, staffing, customer service, etc.		
Experience and References		
Submit detailed information that demonstrates your experience in providing	•	
services as requested in scope of work with government agencies. Include contact	20	
references – names, phone numbers, email address		
Assigned Personnel		
Include information of the assigned personnel that will be directly providing the	25	
requested services to Town. Resume's outlining experience, education,	25	
certifications, and other relevant information is recommended.		
Methodology and Approach		
Submit a detailed narrative of your company's approach to providing services as		
requested in this RFP. Include information on prior marketing strategies and	20	
examples of marketing materials utilized.		
Price Consideration		
Detailed pricing for proposed project to include all aspects of the services to be	25	
rendered.		
<b>Total Possible Points</b>	100	
New Mexico Resident Business Preference:	5	
Five percent of the total possible points to a resident business.		
Offeror shall include a copy of their In-State Certificate issued by State of New		
Mexico Taxation & Revenue Department.		
Veteran New Mexico Resident Business Preference :	10	
Ten percent of the total possible points to a resident veteran business. To qualify an		
Offeror must include a copy of their Resident Veteran Certificate issued by State of		
New Mexico Taxation & Revenue Department, and NM Tax & Revenue		
documentation of annual business revenue.		
10 points for Resident Veteran Business/Contractor with annual revenues of \$3		
million or less as verified by State of NM Tax & Revenue.		
Total Awarded Points	<b>Up to 110</b>	

## **SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS**

### (For ease of evaluation, Proposals should be formatted in the order as listed below)

The Offeror is particularly encouraged to address all points that will be evaluated as described herein, in each point of the evaluation criteria. If a factor of evaluation is not adequately responded to by the Offeror, the Offeror may be determined to be non-responsive.

<u>Your response shall not exceed 75 (seventy five) single sided pages</u>. The page limit does not include: front and back cover, Table of Contents, any required attachments, and blank dividers.

#### Proposal shall include:

- 1. Letter of Transmittal Form
- 2. Firm/Company Profile
- 3. Experience and References
- 4. Assigned Personnel
- 5. Methodology and Approach
- 6. Price Consideration
- 7. Exhibits: All documents should be signed:

Offeror's Information Form, Campaign Contribution Form, Conflict of Interest and Debarment/Suspension Certification Form, Statement of Confidentiality, NM Resident Business Preference or NM Veteran Resident Business Certificate – if applicable,

Acknowledgement of Addendums.

## PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

Please submit your completed proposal, including the following items.\* Note that the requested information is mandatory and failure to submit these items with your response may deem it non-responsive and may be disqualified.

	Letter of transmittal, SIGNED
	Evaluation Criteria documentation
	Completed Offeror's Information Form, SIGNED
	Cost Proposal
	Campaign Contributions Disclosure Form, SIGNED
	Completed Conflict of Interest and Debarment/Suspension Form, SIGNED
	Completed Statement of Confidentiality, SIGNED
	Resident Contractor (or Veteran Resident Contractor) Preference Certificate – if applicable
	Acknowledge Addendums, if applicable (see Offeror's Information Form) – <b>before</b> submitting your
	proposal, please check for addendums here:
htt	ps://www.taosgov.com/200/Purchasing then click on View Current Solicitations Online
or	
htt	ps://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/Bids/View/BidsList?BuyerId=97d73bf5-0344-4656-88f8-a3246ba6bb31
	positive positive and a second positive and
	The following RFP information must be clearly labeled on the outer envelope of your sealed proposal
	Please note: If you put your sealed proposal inside a FedEx, UPS, etc. envelope, all of this information
	must also be written and visible on the outermost envelope of your sealed proposal:
	☐ Offeror's Business Name (not an individual's name)
	□ RFP Number & Title:
	☐ Proposal Due Date & Time:
	☐ Proper Delivery Address (see page 2)

\* If items are not completed as required, your proposal may be deemed non-responsive.

### **LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL FORM – Submit with your proposal**

Item #1 to 4 EACH **MUST** BE RESPONDED TO, Failure to respond to all four items **WILL** RESULT IN THE DISQUALIFICATION OF THE PROPOSAL.

1. Identity (Name) and Mailing Address of the submitting organization:

For the Person authorized by	y the organization to contractually obligate the organization:
Name	
Title	
E-Mail Address	
Telephone/Fax number	
Name	
Title	
E-Mail Address	
Telephone/Fax number	
For the person to be contacted	ed for <u>clarifications</u> :
Name	
Title	
E-Mail Address	
Telephone/Fax number	

The undersigned declares that the amount and nature of the service to be furnished is understood and that the nature of this proposal is in strict accordance with the conditions set forth and is a part of this proposal, and that the undersigned Offeror has read and understands the scope and conditions of the proposal.

The undersigned, in submitting this proposal, represents that Offeror is an equal opportunity employer, and will not discriminate with regard to race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, physical or mental handicap, serious medical conditions, spousal affiliation, sexual orientation or gender identity as specified in Sec. 28-1-7 NMSA 1978 in the performance of this contract between Offeror and the Town of Taos ("TOWN").

The undersigned hereby proposes to perform necessary professional services for the amount and upon the conditions stated in this proposal after notice of award. This proposal is subject to the Purchase Order "Terms and Conditions", Proposal Requirements, and Scope of Work.



Authorized Signature and Date (Must be signed by the person identified in Item #2, above.)

# SIGN

## **OFFEROR'S INFORMATION FORM**

Date of Proposal:	•		
New Mexico State License N	lo		
Resident Business Preference	ce Certificate No	).	
Resident Veteran Business F	Preference Cert.	No	
NOTE: Attac	ch a copy of the	valid certificate and documentati	on to validate percent preference.
Contractor's New Mexico Gr	oss Receipts Ta	x No	
Contractor's Federal Employ	ee Identification	No	
Proposal of (Company name	:):		
(Hereinafter called the "Offer business as a Corporation, F	, •	nd existing under the laws of the dividual (Circle correct one).	State of New Mexico, doing
The undersigned, as an auth for Proposals for Media, Pub			ve, in compliance with the Request
The undersigned Offeror's re	presentative als	so acknowledges receipt of the fo	llowing Addenda:
Addendum No:	, dated	, Addendum No:	, dated
Addendum No:	, dated	, Addendum No:	, dated
		ll be awarded in accordance with ight to reject any or all proposals	the provisions of the Request for and to waive any technical
		n the event the contract are not e and additional expenses to the O	
Respectfully Submitted,			
By: ( <mark>Authorized Signature</mark> ) _		Date:	:
By: (Same name, printed or	typed)		
Title:			
Company:			
Address:		Phone: _	
		Zip:	
Affix Corporate Seal if propo	sal is by Corpora	ation)	

## **COST PROPOSAL**

## RFP # 19-20-08

Media, Public Relations and Marketing Agency

Contractor agrees to perform work, according to the terms, conditions and specifications described herein, at the rates stated below, throughout the term of the contract.

To be provided by Offeror:

#### CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, § 13-1-191.1 (2006), any person seeking to enter into a contract with any state agency or local public body for professional services must file this form with that state agency or local public body. This form must be filed even if the contract qualifies as a small purchase or a sole source contract. The prospective contractor must disclose whether they, a family member or a representative of the prospective contractor has made a campaign contribution to an applicable public official of the state or a local public body during the two years prior to the date on which the contractor submits a proposal or, in the case of a sole source or small purchase contract, the two years prior to the date the contractor signs the contract, if the aggregate total of contributions given by the prospective contractor, a family member or a representative of the prospective contractor to the public official exceeds two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250) over the two year period.

Furthermore, the state agency or local public body shall void an executed contract or cancel a solicitation or proposed award for a proposed contract if: 1) a prospective contractor, a family member of the prospective contractor, or a representative of the prospective contractor gives a campaign contribution or other thing of value to an applicable public official or the applicable public official's employees during the pendency of the procurement process or 2) a prospective contractor fails to submit a fully completed disclosure statement pursuant to the law.

THIS FORM MUST BE FILED BY ANY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR WHETHER OR NOT THEY, THEIR FAMILY MEMBER, OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE HAS MADE ANY CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE.

The following definitions apply:

- "Applicable public official" means a person elected to an office or a person appointed to complete a term of an elected office, who has the authority to award or influence the award of the contract for which the prospective contractor is submitting a competitive sealed proposal or who has the authority to negotiate a sole source or small purchase contract that may be awarded without submission of a sealed competitive proposal.
- "Campaign Contribution" means a gift, subscription, loan, advance or deposit of money or other thing of value, including the estimated value of an in-kind contribution, that is made to or received by an applicable public official or any person authorized to raise, collect or expend contributions on that official's behalf for the purpose of electing the official to federal, statewide or local office. "Campaign Contribution" includes the payment of a debt incurred in an election campaign, but does not include the value of services provided without compensation or unreimbursed travel or other personal expenses of individuals who volunteer a portion or all of their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee, nor does it include the administrative or solicitation expenses of a political committee that are paid by an organization that sponsors the committee.
- "Family member" means spouse, father, mother, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law or son-in-law.
- "Pendency of the procurement process" means the time period commencing with the public notice of the request for proposals and ending with the award of the contract or the cancellation of the request for proposals.
- "Person" means any corporation, partnership, individual, joint venture, association or any other private legal entity.
- "Prospective contractor" means a person who is subject to the competitive sealed proposal process set forth in the Procurement Code or is not required to submit a competitive sealed proposal because that person qualifies for a sole source or a small purchase contract.
- "Representative of a prospective contractor" means an officer or director of a corporation, a member or manager

of a limited liability corporation, a partner of a partnership or a trustee of a trust of the prospective contractor.

## MAYOR: DANIEL R. BARRONE

## **COUNCIL MEMBERS:**

## PASCUALITO M. MAESTAS NATHANIEL EVANS

DARIEN D. FERNANDEZ GEORGE "FRITZ" HAHN

DISCLOSURE O	F CONTRIBUTIONS:	
Contribution Mad	le By:	
Name of Applical	ble Public Official:	
Date Contribution	n(s) Made:	
Amount(s) of Cor		
Nature of Contrib	oution(s)	
	Signature	Date
	Title (position)	Offeror Business Name
SIGN WHERE APPLICABLE		– OR –
APPLICABLE		IN THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OVER TWO HUNDRED  ) WERE MADE to an applicable public official by me, a family
	C. T	Date
	Title (position)	Offeror Business Name

# SIGN

## CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION FORM

As utilized herein, the term "Vendor" shall mean that entity submitting a proposal to the Town of Taos in response to the above referenced bids/request for proposals.

The authorize	ed Perso	on, Firm ar	d/or Co	orporation st	tates that to t	he best of	his/her	belief and
knowledge: No	employ	ee or public	official of	f the Town of	Taos (or close re	elative), witl	h the excep	ption of the
person(s) ident	tified bel	low, has a d	irect or	indirect finan	cial interest in	the Vendor	r or in the	e proposed
transaction. V	endor ne	ither employ	s, nor is	negotiating to	employ, any	Town of Tag	os employ	ee, council
member or clos	se relativ	e, with the ex	xception	of the person	(s) identified be	low. Vendo	or did not	participate,
directly or indi	ectly, in	the preparation	on of spe	cifications upo	on which the quo	ote or offer is	made. If	the Vendor
is a New Mexic	o State I	Legislator or	if a New	Mexico State	Legislator holds	s a controllir	ng interest	in Vendor,
please identify	the legis	slator:			Li	st below the	e name(s)	of any the
Town of Taos,	employe	e, public off	icial or o	close relative	who now or wit	hin the prec	eding 12	months (1)
works for the V	Vendor; (	2) has an ow	nership i	interest in the	Vendor (other t	han as an o	wner of le	ss than 1%
of Vendor's sto	ock, if V	endor is a pu	iblicly tra	aded corporat	ion); (3) is a pa	rtner, office	r, director	, trustee or
consultant to th	ie Vendo	r; (4) has rec	eived gr	ant, travel, ho	noraria or other	similar sup	port from	Vendor; or
(5) has	a	right	to	receive	royalties	from	the	vendor.

### **DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS**

The Vendor certifies that it is not suspended, debarred or ineligible from entering into contracts with the Federal Government, or any State agency or local public body, or in receipt of a notice or proposed debarment from any Federal or State agency or local public body. The vendor agrees to provide immediate notice to the Town of Taos Purchasing Division in the event of being suspended, debarred or declared ineligible by any department or agency of the Federal government, or any agency of local public body of the State of New Mexico, or upon receipt of a notice of proposed debarment that is received after the submission of the quote or offer but prior to the award of the purchase order or contract.

#### **CERTIFICATION**

The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she has read the above <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u> and <u>DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION</u> Status requirements and that he/she understands and will comply with these requirements. The undersigned further certifies that they have the authority to certify compliance for the vendor named <u>and that the information contained in this document is true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.</u>

Signature:		Date	
Name of Person Sign	ing (typed or printed):		
Title:			
Name of Company (t	yped or printed):		
Address:			
City/State/Zip:			
Telephone:		Email:	

#### STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

The undersigned employee of/subcontractor to	, hereinafter referred to as
"Offeror" and/or "Contractor", agrees, during the RFP process, and during to	the term of the Contract between
Contractor and the Town of Taos (TOWN) and forever thereafter, to keep	confidential all information and
material provided by TOWN or otherwise acquired by the employee/sub	contractor, excepting only such
information as is already known to the public, and including any such info	ormation and material relating to
Attachments of this RFP, and relating to any client, vendor, or other par	ty transacting business with the
TOWN, and not to release, use or disclose the same except with the prior writer	itten permission of TOWN. This
obligation shall survive the termination or cancellation of the Contract between	ween Contractor and the TOWN
or of the undersigned's employment or affiliation with Contractor, even if or	ccasioned by Contractor's breach
or wrongful termination.	

The undersigned recognizes that the disclosure of information may give rise to irreparable injury to the TOWN, a client or customer of the TOWN, or to the owner of such information, inadequately compensable in damages and that, accordingly, the or such other party may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of the within undertakings, in addition to any other legal remedies which may be available. The undersigned acknowledges that he or she may be personally subject to civil and/or criminal proceedings for such breach or threatened breach.

SIGN	
	Signature Signat
	Title
	Offeror Business Name
	Date